
17.0831.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/16/2017

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1384

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

House Bill 1384 moves the administrator of abandoned property from the purview of the Land Commissioner and 
places it with the State Treasurer.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

House Bill 1384 moves the duties of unclaimed property administration to the Office of State Treasurer. Assuming 
that all current FTEs and resources devoted to the administration of unclaimed property are transferred accordingly, 
there would be no significant fiscal impact of this bill.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: Ryan Skor

Agency: Office of State Treasurer

Telephone: (701)328-4637

Date Prepared: 01/19/2017
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to abandoned property; relating to the administrator of abandoned property. 

Minutes: Attachments 1 and 2. 

Chairman Klemin: Opened the hearing on HB 1384. 

Rep. Kempenich, District 39: Introduced HB 1384. This bill would move the Unclaimed 
Property Division from the State Land Department to the State Treasurers Department. 
Where it resides right now in Chapter 15-02, we would be repealing that chapter and moving 
it into the State Treasurers Office. Most states do handle this function within state 
government. It is not that the State Land department isn't doing well it is that there is some 
functions in the State Treasurers office that would serve this Department well and that is what 
we are looking at to do with this bill. 

Chairman Klemin: Why do we want to do this.? 

Rep. Kempenich: Because the treasurer can go into it a little bit and I she has the ability 
to do this . It may be served better in the Treasurer's office and getting some of the unclaimed 
property to the people it should go. Since it is a small office I was thinking it would expand 
its role of what its functions are. The Land Department has been dealing with State Trust 
Lands and has been busier than they need to be. 

Rep. Guggisberg: It says in the bill "shall employee an administrator of abandoned property" 
and you are saying they are doing a good job where they are now and you are not critical of 
them. I realize we don't make employment decisions but the idea would be to move the 
employees from that department to the Treasurer's office? 

Rep. Kempenich: Yes, actually there would be one employee that would move over. There 
wouldn 't be any fiscal impact on either agency if you look at the fiscal note. 

Chairman Klemin: Any other testimony in support of HB 1384? Any opposition or neutral 
testimony to HB 1384? 
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Susan Dollinger, Unclaimed Property Administrator for the North Dakota Department 
of Trusts Lands: Neutral testimony to HB 1384. (See Attachment #1) 7:10-15:47 

Rep. Longmuir How many people are in your office? You said you added additional staff? 

Ms. Dollinger: Prior to 2015 there was one FTE and in 2015 the department added some 
and we are at about 2 ½ FTE's that are dedicated to unclaimed property in addition to the 
support from IT Department and our accounting people, revenue compliance. There is lots 
of moving parts. 

Rep. Longmuir: I see where a lot of the funding for your portion for the department comes 
from the department itself. Will those funding sources transfer over if it goes to the 
Treasurers office? 

Ms. Dollinger: I can't answer that question but I will find out and get back to you on that. 

Rep. Ertelt: Can you explain the difference between unclaimed and abandoned property? 
I see in the bill text and existing law that those two terms exist. 

Ms. Dollinger: Unclaimed and abandoned property are often interchanged within all 50 
states. After a certain period of time say a payroll check for example is considered 
abandoned and at that point is when the holders are required to report it to the division. 
Unclaimed and abandoned terms are interchangeable but abandoned comes in when we are 
talking about periods of time and how long until it is reportable. 

Chairman Klemin: This proposes to repeal Section 15-02-05.2, do you know what that is? 

Ms. Dollinger: Yes, that has to do with the dissolution of cooperatives and the verbiage 
that is there really wouldn't change the operations at all. 

Chairman Klemin: So this repeal is not connected to your operations? Will not the repeal 
that is set out in this bill doesn't make any difference one way or the other. Is that what you 
are saying? 

Ms. Dollinger: Basically yes. 

Rep K. Koppelman: In the history of this one session they did a search of the Legislators 
and found some that had unclaimed property sitting there. What efforts does your office 
make in terms of finding the unclaimed property for and finding them? 

Ms. Dollinger: We are statutorily required to post the names in the newspaper once a year 
of anything we have received in the last year. In addition to that we have the website which 
the public has access to that. We also participate in another website called Missing 
Money.com and that is a data base that is comprehensive of about 40 of the states. We also 
send out direct mailings to the owners. We purchase address updates and we can send 
them a letter, that has really enhanced the number of claims we have seen come in. 
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Rep K. Koppelman: Is that a relatively new effort to actually reach out to the individuals 
rather than just publishing something on a website or newspaper? 

Ms. Dollinger: That has always been a desire to do that, but since the addition of a couple 
more staff people we were able to add that function . We started about 2 years ago. We 
have also generated a poster that we had all the post offices and libraries put up. 

Rep K. Koppelman: Has that increased the success. 

Ms. Dollinger: Most definitely. 

Rep. Zubke: Can you tell me what the value of the assets are that you administer right now 
in unclaimed property? Who directs where these assets are invested? 

Ms. Dollinger: The number of dollars in the common schools trust funds on behalf of 
unclaimed property is right around $66 million dollars at this point. It is our investments 
department that has the responsibility of investing those funds as part of the common 
school 's funds . 

Rep. Maragos: Did I understand you to say you provide information to Missing Money.com 
along with 39 other states? 

Ms. Dollinger: Unclaimed Property sends information once a month. The difference 
between the two websites is the North Dakota website is updated in real time. Any time we 
enter new property in there it shows up immediately. Missing Money.com is about a month 
behind. 

Rep. Maragos: None of that would change if we adopt this piece of legislation and transfer 
you over to the Treasurers Department. 

Ms. Dollinger: The ultimate goal of unclaimed property administrators in any state is to 
return assets to the rightful owner. Anything we can do to increase that number would be 
good . 

Kelly Schmidt, ND State Treasure: Neutral testimony to HS 1384. (See Attachment # 2) . 
24:00-26:33 

Chairman Klem in: If the operations of the unclaimed property are transferred to your office 
will those funds continue to be invested in the Common Schools Trust fund? 

Ms. Schmidt: They would stay in the Common Schools Trust fund . 

Rep. Maragos: Does that mean that their investment arm will continue to do the investing? 

Ms. Schmidt: Yes and as a fiduciary of the Common Schools Trust fund I am responsible 
for the asset allocation and the fiduciary responsibility of those investments. The Land 
Department and the investment office of the Land Department then initiates and does the 
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investing, the actual investments. But we the Board are the fiduciary responsibility and the 
Treasurer is part of that process. 

Chairman Klemin: Any other testimony on HB 1384. Seeing none we will close the hearing 
on HB 1384. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to abandoned property; relating to the administrator of abandoned property. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Klemin: Opened for committee work we will discuss HB 1384 that is about 
moving the Unclaimed Property Division from the Department of Trust Lands over to the 
State Treasurer's Office. 

Rep K. Koppelman: I think this is reasonable. It seems to fit more with the State Treasurers 
responsibilities to me. The history on this is this money sits there and there really isn't much 
of an effort to locate the people who actually own it. I did a little search and it is interesting 
to see if you are in there. I move a Do pass on HB 1384. 

Rep. Simons: Seconded. 

Chairman Klemin: There is another constitutional amendment that was heard this week in 
another committee to put this to a vote of the people whether we should even keep the State 
Treasurers office. One of the arguments I have heard is that the State Treasurer doesn't 
have enough to do and the alternative is to give her more work to do. This is a bill that does 
that. The clerk will take the roll on the Do Pass on HB 1384. 

Roll Call Vote taken: Yes 12 No .l Absent 1 . Motion Carried. 

Representative Guggisberg: will carry the bill. 

Chairman Klemin: Hearing closed. 
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Committee 
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Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

~ Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
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Total 
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Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Representatives Yes No 
Rep. Guaaisberg '>t' 
Rep. Hanson X 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1384: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Klemin, Chairman) recommends DO 

PASS (12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1384 was placed on 
the Eleventh order on the calendar. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the administrator of abandoned property 

Minutes: Written testimony #1 Rep. Kempenich, Dept. of Trust 
Lands- Unclaimed Property 
Written testimony #2 Susan Dollinger pg.1-5 
Written testimony #3 Gerard Schwan pg. 1-5 
Written testimonv #4 Kellv Schmidt, State Treasurer 

Chairman Burckhard opened the hearing for HB 1384. All senators are present. 

(:31- 2:35) Rep. Kempenich, Dist. 39 includes Adams, Bowman, Golden Valley, Billings, 
McKenzie and parts of Dunn County. He introduced and explained this bill. (Written testimony 
#1. Dept. of Trust Lands-Unclaimed Property). It is moving the Unclaimed Land Department 
to the Treasury Department. 

Sen. J. Lee: I was at that audit and my recollection wasn't that there was any issue 
particularly with the unclaimed property area. That the questions had to do with whether or 
not some of the expenditures with Surge money had been appropriately designated when 
really the fault as we went through our discussion was with Legislators for well- intended as 
we were having it very flexible for the entities that received the money but it wasn't 
necessarily something that a general audit would think was right. Like the playground that 
was moved when the reason was because the highway was preventing children from getting 
safely to that playground. That kind of stuff. So I don't recall having any discussion in 
Legislative Audit and Fiscal review about the Unclaimed Property part, can you refresh my 
memory? 

Rep. Kempenich: That is part of the discussion. It wasn't prominent part of the discussion. 
The prominent part of that discussion of that audit was actually the procedures of how and 
when that took place in 2011, the biggest parts of those audits. But there were 30 findings 
on the state lands. This are just 19 findings in the Unclaimed properties part of that 
performance audit. But that was part of the discussion. This part of the Lands Department is 
there, but it probably could do better. That's basically what this says. 

Chairman Burckhard: Do you know how this is handled in other states? 
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Rep. Kempenich: Most states, from what I understand this is in the Treasurer's preview. 

Chairman Burckhard asked for neutral testimony first, then those in favor of, and then 
opposed to this bill. ~owe will start with neutral testimony. 

(6:04-12:30) Susan Dollinger; Unclaimed Property Administrator for the ND 
Department of Trust lands. (Written Testimony# 2, pages 1-5) 

Chairman Burckhard: Why aren't the other 10 states participating? Is it an option obviously? 

(12:35-17:34) Susan Dollinger: continued with her testimony #1. 

Sen. D. Larson: Rep. Kempenich mentioned that this would be a transfer of 1.5 FTE's, I 
don't know how that really works? Would this mean that you would then if this bill passes the 
way it is, that you would then work in the Treasurer's office? 

Ms. Susan Dollinger: That is my understanding. You're going to hear testimony later that 
gets into that a little deeper, about the number of FTE's and the division of duties. That will 
come later. 

Sen. Anderson: A couple of questions relating to the audit report. I see number 15. It 
eliminates the requirement that certain owners pay a fee to receive their property. So you've 
been charging a fee but that hasn't been in administrative code, is that my understanding of 
that? 

Ms. Susan Dollinger: I don't know how much time we have to explain the $50 fee. But if an 
owner of a mutual fund, no it was the security that held it more than trust. There is a $50 
administrative fee that our custodian charges us to transfer ownership and we were passing 
on that $50 fee to the owner. Because they have the choice to either have the shares 
liquidated, and have the cash returned to them, or they can transfer it back into their name 
as it was. If they do the transfer there is a $50, administrative fee and we were passing that 
along. Since that time we have discontinued that practice. 

Sen. Anderson: When you started out you said that these properties is held in perpetuity for 
these people. But number 16 here, they are suggesting that you hold periodic sales of 
unclaimed property and dispose of anything of minimal value that hasn't been used. So how 
do those two things reconcile? 

Ms. Susan Dollinger: The law allows for periodic sales of tangible property. It doesn't 
mandate it. The division has actually not had a sale since 1993. It's for that very reason. We 
have room to keep it, why would we sell it, because yes we would like to always to be able 
to give individuals their property back. 

Opposition Testimony 

(21.19-35.38) Gerard Schwan, Director of Grants and Claims and I work for the 
Department of Trust Lands, testified in opposition of HB 1384. Written testimony# 3. 
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Sen. D. Larson: When you were counting the different logistical considerations, the last one 
in your bullet pointed list, says 'transferring the child support data', sharing with OHS? There 
is unclaimed property there, I mean that's a different function right? 

Mr. Gerard Schwan: Of course under fire, I've got 114 days on the job. So I am still learning 
all the intricacies, so I am going to have Susan Dollinger return to the podium and answer 
that question, specifically to that program. He continued with his testimony #3. 

(35.50-36.36) Ms. Susan Dollinger: What that means is not that we have access to the child 
support data, but we do have an agreement with the high intensity child support unit, 
whereby, once a year we do a cross reference with their data and they are able to put liens 
on any property that we are holding for a child's support or in arears. So we don't have their 
data, we just help them collect money on behalf of the kids really. Does that answer your 
question? 

Sen. D. Larson: it seems to me that the child support people in OHS would be looking for 
those funds and that it wouldn't be you having to try to. 

Ms. Susan Dollinger: they do, but once a year after the reporting cycle is complete the 
deadline is November 1st• So that is the period of time when the bulk of our reports come in. 
So early in the following year is when we collaborate with them and do one big check, so that 
they don't have to. I think this year we added 14,000 names to our data base. So for them to 
go through, it is just something that we work with them together on. 

Sen. D. Larson: Another thing that was brought up on pg. 3 of his testimony was that you 
have to do the outreach including the publication of a list of the owners, publishing the list in 
every county's official newspaper. I am guessing that would be expensive. 

Ms. Susan Dollinger: Yes, it is very expensive. Once a year we have to publish in each 
county newspaper all of the names that we received over the last year. So we don't have to 
put all of the names in every year. This year we will report the properties that we received in 
the 2016 reporting cycle. 

Chairman Randy Burckhard: So if it was a co-op and they have unclaimed capital credits, 
and let's say they have 1000 people on that list, is that something you have to be aware of 
too, or is that just something that is handled through the newsletter or however they would 
look? 

Ms. Susan Dollinger: Co-ops are handled a little bit differently. But yes some of them report 
every itemized one, and some don't. 

Sen. J. Lee: May I just clarify the child support one. There are many different connections 
between the child support collections unit and various places where they are assets whether 
it is an insurance payment or an unclaimed property area. We have millions of dollars $286 
Min back child support that is owed. So anyplace that there is an asset that might have been 
new since the previous annual date, would then be reportable to the Child Support 
Collections Division, so that they could ensure that those dollars which the court said should 
be going to the children, goes to the children. 
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Sen. Dotzenrod: We had this explanation of the "D" rating that is primarily really about the 
attitude and the emphasis it appears within our small agency toward serving the public and 
making sure that there is a good thread of applying as much as possible, in trying to keep 
that record of ownership and serving those individuals, where a lot of the rating is about 
business. It's about trying to keep the dollars flowing, and keep a tighter control on everything 
and now worry so much about the people that are entitled to get this property. I think I follow 
that. 

Ms. Susan Dollinger: You are correct. North Dakota is a little less holder friendly than some 
of the other states. Some of the things that are listed in there, a list of criteria, that they used 
to rate us. We do allow third party auditors and we. The items that are listed are things that 
we received points for, and the lower the score, the higher the grade. So we got a lot of 
points, because we allow for third party auditors and we allow for penalties and interest, 
although, it is very rare that we would enforce or expect penalties for late reports or interest 
on properties. 

Sen. Dotzenrod: Do you feel you have enough people there to do the job? Because there is 
quite a bit of work here, the way it looks and a lot of the volume of space needed to keep 
track of everything and there is quite a list here of things that came up in the audit. do you 
need more people to make this work, you're looking in to the future, do you think you're going 
to have any trouble managing what's there with the staff people? I am guessing it appears 
that maybe some of these things on this list have to do with the fact you may not have enough 
people to do all this. Is that part of the reason we got so many items on this audit list? 

Ms. Susan Dollinger: Everybody could use more help. What I will say is once we get a new 
system in place, that will free up some time that we are currently spending pushing papers 
around. 0MB has outlines some separation of duties that have come up and fiscal audits 
over the years, and that's why you see so many people involved from the start. When the 
holder money comes in, in the life cycle of that, there is 8 people that touch that before it 
goes out the door. So to answer your question, yes I think we're doing okay now, but we can 
always use more help. I think we have it under control at this point. 

Sen. Dotzenrod: It does appear to me that this agency, it's really a question of where is the 
emphasis within the agency? I've seen this with other ratings of like state's ability to attract 
new business or the rater picks out criteria, and if you get a good score or bad score it may 
not really reflect all the factors, but that particular rater has things they are looking for. So I 
assume that is part of where that "D" rating came from. I think from what I know about the 
agency that there centered on trying to keep a strong sense of who owns that property and 
trying to give it back to the rightful owner. I don't think they get much credit for that in the way 
that their score is kept. 

(45.06-48.17) Kelly Schmidt, State Treasurer, provide a perspective on HB 1384, in 
opposition to this bill. Written testimony# 4. 

Chairman Burckhard: I thought earlier I learned that 32 other states have this in the State 
Treasurer's Office, and you would suggest there are 39. 
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Ms. Kelly Schmidt: 39 is the recent number that we have. I know of 3 state that have recently 
moved unclaimed property to the State Treasurer's office. 

Sen. Anderson: Who prepared the fiscal note on this bill, by looking at it, but obviously the 
Treasurer's office must not have been asked to prepare a fiscal note on how much you would 
cost in this biennium to move the office? 

Ms. Kelly Schmidt: It was the Treasurers' office that prepared the fiscal note. We based it 
on the only information that we had that it would be an actual transfer. The logistics of the 
transfer had not been available to us in this bill, so it was very difficult to quantify. 

Sen. Kannianen: In regards to the list of the logistical considerations that Mr. Schwan gave 
us to consider. If this were to happen, you mentioned that perhaps in the future, but not now, 
it could be a fit or natural fit to have Unclaimed Property within the Treasurer's .Department. 
How would that occur, what kind of transition do you think all that would be? 

Ms. Kelly Schmidt: Without knowing that minutia and as they say the devil is in the details, 
I don't know that I can give you a frank. I know when the time comes some day; those details 
would have to be worked out. But as a member of the Land Board, I do think that the 
information would be available to us. We would have to work together. 

Chairman Burckhard closed the hearing on HB1384. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the administrator of abandoned property 

Minutes: 

Chairman Burckhard asked the committee for discussion and vote on HB 1384. All senators 
are present. 

Sen. Anderson : I wouldn 't know all of the nuances behind this bill , but to me it's fairly obvious 
that, and that's why I asked about the fiscal note, that the Treasurers' office in my opinion 
was a little disingenuous in preparation of this fiscal note, because obviously if you're going 
to move all these people in all their stuff and whatever else to a different department it's going 
to cost a significant amount of money at least in the current biennium. Now it might be that 
in this biennium they could operate with the same dollars. I don't doubt that the Treasurer's 
office could probably manage it, just as well as the Land Department except for the nuances 
related to are you using the money for education? We heard today that there is about $1 M 
in there. The income goes to the education fund, which is different than the others, but I don't 
see a reason to be moving it at this point. 

Sen. Anderson: So I move a Do not pass on 1384. 
2nd: Sen. Diane Larson 

Committee Discussion: 
Sen. Kannianen: I am just wondering how efficiency is, number one, I don't feel that they 
are doing that particularly bad job by any means as we've discussed and has been described 
but if there are any inefficiencies I am not sure how they would necessarily increase simply 
by moving it to a different agency. I agree with the do not pass recommendation . 

Sen. J. Lee: Only that you saw the chart, that shows how the significant amount of the 
findings have already been addressed and almost all the rest are either in process. There 
are some explanations for some of those things. If you're not sitting in the really boring 
discussion, there are reasons in the same sense we just heard why it is in the place it is now 
in North Dakota instead of the Treasurer's office. Some of the reasons quite honestly is 
because they don't have enough staff to do everything quite as rapidly. We know other 
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departments have that same challenge. It talks about one FTE. Is that in addition to the 3 
they have, the current 3.5 or is that instead of the current 3.5? I don't want to know the 
answer, I am just saying I think there is more than one question and I support the motion. 

Sen. Dotzenrod: There are numbers in here about how much property they have, how much 
they have been able to return. But I was not able to get out of this, what is their budget, where 
does their money come from, and are they part of the and lumped in when the budget is set 
for the School of Lands, the Land Trust Department, that they are in there somewhere. One 
of the things that puzzles me a little bit was listening to all these storage containers and these 
buildings. I kind of wondered where they are, and what they look like, and how much does it 
cost? I just couldn't get that out of them with the testimony that we got. But it doesn't affect 
my vote. 

Chairman Burckhard asked for a roll call vote for a Do Not Pass on HB1384. 
Roll call vote: 6-0-0 
Carrier: Senator Burckhard 
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HB 1384: Political Subdivisions Committee (Sen. Burckhard, Chairman) recommends 

DO NOT PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1384 was 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I am Susan Dollinger, Unclaimed Property 
Administrator for the ND Department of Trust Lands (Department). I am here today to give you some 
background relating to the Unclaimed Property Act in North Dakota and to describe the work that 
has been occurring at the Unclaimed Property Division (Division) since at least 1975. 

In this role the Department collects "unclaimed property" and processes owners' claims for their 
assets. This property is held in perpetuity for owners to claim, but the revenue from the investment 
of the money benefits the Common Schools Trust Fund which supports K-12 public schools. 

BACKGROUND 
First, I will describe what is meant by the term unclaimed property. In this context "property" is not 
real estate, but rather consists of intangible and financial items such as uncashed vendor or payroll 
checks, dormant bank accounts, undeliverable securities, forgotten utility deposits, stale-dated 
rebates, and various other financial assets. For example, if an individual fails to close a bank account 
when they move, or an individual places his or her tax refund check in a cookbook for safekeeping 
and then forgets about it, that is when unclaimed property statutes come into play. 

An uncashed payroll check in an employer's account still belongs to the employee, making it personal 
unclaimed property. In unclaimed property terms, the employer in this scenario would be defined as 
a "holder" of unclaimed property. The employer is holding intangible personal property and benefiting 
from its value. If the holder communicates little with the rightful owner about the property, this can 
be referred to as "lucrative silence". 

The notion of "lucrative silence" is what motived the Uniform Law Commission to develop the first 
Uniform Unclaimed Property Act (Act) in the United States in 1954. The Act was amended in 1966, 
1981 , 1995, and most recently in 2016. The Uniform Unclaimed Property Act has been adopted in 
some form in all 50 states and three Canadian provinces. 

In 1975, the North Dakota Legislature enacted N.D.C.C ch. 47-30.1 and placed it under the authority 
of the Board of University and School Lands (Board) in light of the Board's management of the 
Common Schools Trust Fund. While, North Dakota adopted a revised version of the 1981 Act, the 
Division is reviewing the 2016 Uniform Act for possible consideration by the 2019 Legislative 
Session. 

There are two separate aspects to unclaimed property: claims and collections. The first, claims is 
the consumer protection portion, wherein the State returns lost, misplaced, or abandoned assets to 
the rightful owner or heirs. The collections aspect is the education and compliance component 
relating to where the assets come from . 

Each year any entity conducting business in North Dakota is required to review its accounting records 
to ensure it is not holding assets that remain unclaimed. If the business is holding such property, the 



• 

• 

• 

Testimony of Susan Dollinger 
HB 1384 - House Political Subdivisions Committee 
January 27, 2017 - Page 2 of 4 

entity is required to first attempt to locate the rightful owner, and if unsuccessful to transfer the asset 
and report the owner detail to the Division for advertising and posting to public outreach websites . 

CLAIMS 
In recent years, and as a result of bringing on additional staff, the Division has processed an 
increased number of claims and value of property returned to owners. During FY 2010 there were 
2,890 claims paid totaling $1.5 million, which grew in FY 2016 to 5,306 paid claims totaling $4.2 
Million. These are 46% and 64% increases respectively. 

Unclaimed Property - Claims Paid 
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COLLECTIONS 
During the same period there was an increase in the number of reports received and dollars collected 
from holders. During FY 2010 the Division collected approximately $3.2 million compared to $10.4 
million in FY 2016. Increases can be attributed to expanded education and compliance efforts and 
to a significant increase in reporting of unclaimed oil and gas royalties. 
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The Unclaimed Property Division also maintains a portfolio of unclaimed securities on behalf of 
rightful owners valued at approximately $1.5 million which is not reflected in the collections totals. 

Securities are reported in the name of the State of North Dakota Unclaimed Property Division and 
are maintained in a custodial account at Northern Trust; a custodial investment bank that also holds 
the Board 's investment assets. Because of this existing relationship the fees for managing the 
unclaimed property securities are less than other states pay for the same services. 

COMPLIANCE 
To help increase holder compliance rates, North Dakota cooperates with other state unclaimed 
property offices to engage contract auditors to conduct reviews of holders for multiple states at the 
same time. For in-state compliance efforts, in coordination with in-house staff, the Department has 
procured compliance review contracts with six private firms. These efforts have resulted in funds 
being gathered for current and private citizens that would otherwise not have been reported. In 
accordance with unclaimed property statutes, contract auditors have recovered $1.7 million in 
unclaimed property since just since July, 2015 . 
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TANGIBLE PROPERTY 
The Act also provides for the reporting of tangible property from financial institutions, basically assets 
from abandoned safe deposit boxes. Much of the tangible property held by the Division holds more 
sentimental than monetary value. The Division has sufficient suitable storage space and has recently 
taken steps to further safeguard the contents of these boxes by purchasing fireproof and waterproof 
safes for items of monetary value. 

FUNDING 
Funding for the Department's operations, including the Unclaimed Property Division, is managed 
through the State Lands Maintenance fund, authorized under N.D.C.C. § 15-03-01.1. This fund 
consists of fees charged for services, plus a portion of the assets held by the various trusts within 
the Department. All of the trust and other funds that the Board manages contribute a prorated share 
to the maintenance fund for support of collective Department operations including salaries, office 
occupancy and administrative costs. The Common Schools Trust Fund, as the guardian of the 
unclaimed property assets, contributes all of the costs of maintaining the Unclaimed Property 
Division's office operations. There are no general funds appropriated for its functions. In addition, 
N.D.C.C. ch. 47-30.1 includes continuing appropriation authority for program costs including: 
outreach efforts, service charges, audit costs, payment of claims, and holder reimbursements. 

OPERATIONS 
Unclaimed Property administration is data intensive and can benefit greatly from automation and 
technology . 

In 2016, the Department hired a consulting firm to prepare specific process improvement 
recommendations. The contractor, Major Oak suggested that an integrated IT system is needed to 
further enhance controls, increase efficiencies, and boost productivity. The current system used by 
the Division was developed in the 1990s. A new web based system would allow the holders, as well 
as the owners, greater capability to submit holder reports and submit claims on-line. The cost of an 
integrated IT system was included in the Department's appropriations request and is included in the 
executive budget recommendations. 

I would like to thank the committee for taking the time to learn about the State Unclaimed Property 
Division. I would be happy to answer any questions you may have . 
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To: Rep. Lawrence Klemin, Chairman 

Cc: Political Subdivisions Committee members 

Lance D. Gaebe, Land Commissioner 
Susan Dollinger, Unclaimed Property Administrator 

From: Susan Dollinger, Unclaimed Property Administrator~ 

Date: February 1, 2017 

Re: HB 1384 - Follow Up to question regarding funding 

At the Committee's request, I am writing to respond to a question, and to clarify the testimony that I 
presented on HB 1384, regarding investment income and funding for Unclaimed Property operations. 

Money collected by the Unclaimed Property Division is held in a special fund, and is used to pay its 
expenses. All funds received in the name of an individual or business always belong to that owner. 
The State holds, but does not take ownership of the assets and the rightful owner/heir can claim their 
property at any time . 

When funds are received by the Unclaimed Property Division, an operational amount is kept in a 
separate account to pay claims and expenses. This account is maintained separately from the 
Common Schools Trust Fund (CSTF). 

The Department of Trusts Lands uses an allocation formula to fund operation expenses from the 
State Lands Maintenance Fund. The Department's operations, including for the Unclaimed Property 
Division are prorated based upon assets and FTEs. 

Regularly, unclaimed funds are transferred to the CSTF so that it can be invested along with the other 
permanent trusts. Any earnings on unclaimed cash is credited to the Common Schools Trust Fund for 
the benefit of educational funding . 
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• The purpose of unclaimed property laws are to protect consumers by ensuring money owed to 
them is returned to them, rather than remaining permanently with financial institutions and 
other companies. The U.S. Supreme Court ruled in 1951 that while state governments are 
waiting for the funds to be returned to rightful owners, it is good public policy for the money to 
be used not only to fund general expenses but also special programs such as our Common 
Schools Trust Fund. 

• Under the administration of the Department of Trust Lands, North Dakota ranks below the 
national average in the amount of money it returns to rightful owners, according to the National 
Association of State Treasurers and a rated a "D" from the Council of State Taxation. In 2015, 
North Dakota collected approximately $7.S million dollars and returned $2.9 million dollars. 

• The majority of state unclaimed property programs are administered by the state treasurer. 
There is a reason for this, State Treasurers have a ready-made platform to make citizens aware 
of unclaimed property. State treasurers inform people at civic clubs, county fairs, and business 
association meetings to not only search the state website for what is due them, but also 
increase compliance with the unclaimed property law. Companies, associations and 
municipalities have unclaimed property too! 

• Should the Legislature transfer the administration of the unclaimed property program to my 
office, I will increase the profile of the program across the state. While it is the responsibility of 
each of us to maintain our own finances, I will work tirelessly to return this money to our 
citizens - to individuals, to companies, to associations, and municipalities. This is NOT a gift or 
grant from the government.. .. . it is the people's money. 
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Department of Trust Lands - Unclaimed Property 
The committee received the performance audit report of the Department of Trust Lands unclaimed property function. 

The performance audit was conducted by the State Auditor's office pursuant to authority within Chapter 54-10. The 
objective of the audit was to determine if the Department of Trust Lands is effectively administering unclaimed property, 
including claims payments. The audit period reviewed was July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2015. 

Unclaimed property is property held, issued, or owing in the ordinary course of a holder's business and has remained 
unclaimed by the owner for more than the established time frame for the type of property. Unclaimed property may 
include a check, unpaid wage, stock, an amount payable under the terms of an insurance policy, or contents of a safe 
deposit box. A holder may include a bank, insurance company, hospital, utility company, retailer, or local government. 
An owner is a person or entity with a legal or equitable interest in property subject to the unclaimed property law. Since 
1975 it has been the responsibility of the Unclaimed Property Division of the Department of Trust Lands to assist 
individuals with identifying property presumed abandoned. The administrator of the division is responsible for the 
operations of unclaimed property. The division acts as custodian of the unclaimed property received from holders. The 
property is held in trust in perpetuity by the state. The 1981 Uniform Unclaimed Property Act, created by the national 
Uniform Law Commission, was adopted by the state in 1985. The Act directs unclaimed or abandoned funds to be turned 
over to the unclaimed property program after a predetermined period of inactivity or lost contact between a business and 
the rightful owner. 

The following schedule provides information regarding the amounts that were collected in unclaimed property and 
amount paid in claims for the 2007-09 through 2013-15 bienniums. 

2007-09 2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 
Biennium Biennium Biennium Biennium 

Collected $8.9 million $9.3 million $10.1 million S15.7 million 
Claimed $3.6 million $3.3 million $4.0 million $4.9 million 
Percentage of amount collected that was claimed 40.4% 35.5% 39.6% 31 .2% 

The committee learned a major finding of the audit was that aspects of the unclaimed property program were 
operating ineffectively. 

The performance audit recommended the Department of Trust Lands: 

1. Ensure complete and accurate resources are available to persons searching for unclaimed property. 

2. Increase efforts to locate owners of unclaimed property, and ensure efforts to locate owners are done in a fair 
and consistent manner. 

3. Monitor abandoned property reporting information from entities in the state and conduct audits of entities in the 
state to ensure abandoned property is appropriately turned over to the department. 

4. Provide state entities proper guidance and training on unclaimed property requirements. 

5. Eliminate language related to negative reporting for unclaimed property or take appropriate action to require 
negative reports and monitor compliance. 

6. Comply with state law requirements and provide written consent to holders if property is to be submitted to the 
department prior to the property being presumed abandoned and ensure property is held until the oroper time 

• bas oassed tac ocaoflctY to be presumed abandoned . 

7. Ensure unclaimed property data is complete, accurate, and consistently entered. 

8. Receipt and maintain a complete list of unclaimed property consistently and appropriately. 

9. Ensure unclaimed tangible property received is accounted for timely and comply with requirements for publishing 
notice in the newspaper. 

10. Enter owner information into the unclaimed property database when the holder provides adequate owner 
information regardless of the property value and take appropriate action to lower the aggregate reporting amount. 

11 . Adequately safeguard unclaimed property submitted to the department. 

12. Adequately safeguard confidential and sensitive information obtained and maintained by the department. 

13. Process claims for unclaimed property consistently and appropriately. 

14. Eliminate the requirement that certain owners pay a fee to receive their unclaimed property, which has not been 
sold or liquidated by the department. 

15. Comply with state law requirements related to unclaimed property in a state agency's name and ensure the 
Budget Section is provided a complete list of state agencies not submitting a claim for property after a year of 
being notified, not providing state agencies the "donation" option, and no longer publishing state agencies in the 
annual notice of property. 

16. Conduct periodic sales of unclaimed property and dispose of property with minimal value. 

17. Take appropriate action to establish holder, owner, and department requirements within Administrative Code for 
unclaimed property. 
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INVESTING FOR EDUCATION 

Lance D. Gaebe, Commissioner 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I am Susan Dollinger, Unclaimed Property 
Administrator for the North Dakota Department of Trust Lands (Department). I am here today to 
provide background relating to the Unclaimed Property Act in North Dakota and to describe the 
work being done by the Unclaimed Property Division (Division) since 1975. 

In this role, the Department collects "unclaimed property" and processes owners' claims for their 
assets. This property is held in perpetuity for owners to claim, but the revenue from the investment 
of the money benefits the Common Schools Trust Fund which supports K-12 public schools. 

BACKGROUND 
First, I will describe what is meant by the term unclaimed property. In this context "property" is not 
real estate, rather it consists of intangible and financial items such as uncashed vendor or payroll 
checks, dormant bank accounts, undeliverable securities, forgotten utility deposits, stale-dated 
rebates, and various other financial assets. For example, if individuals move their residence and 
fail to close a bank account, or places their tax refund check in a cookbook for safekeeping and 
then forgets about them, the unclaimed property statutes come into play after a period of time. 

An uncashed payroll check in an employer's account still belongs to the employee to whom it was 
paid, making it personal unclaimed property. In unclaimed property terms, the employer in this 
scenario would be defined as a "holder'' of unclaimed property. The employer is holding intangible 
personal property and benefiting from its value. If the holder does not communicate with the rightful 
owner about the property, this can be referred to as "lucrative silence". 

The notion of "lucrative silence" is what motivated the Uniform Law Commission to develop the first 
Uniform Unclaimed Property Act (Act) in the United States in 1954. The Act was amended in 1966, 
1981 , 1995, and most recently in 2016. The Uniform Unclaimed Property Act has been adopted in 
some form in all 50 states, Washington DC, Puerto Rico, and three Canadian provinces. 

In 1975, the North Dakota enacted its first Unclaimed Property Laws and placed it under the 
authority of the Board of University and School Lands (Board), because of the Board's 
management of the Common Schools Trust Fund. North Dakota has since adopted a revised 
version of the1981 Uniform Unclaimed Property Act. The Division is presently reviewing the 2016 
Uniform Act for possible recommendations for the 2019 Legislative Assembly. 

I 



• 

• 

• 

Testimony of Susan Dollinger 
HB 1384 - Senate Political Subdivisions Committee 
March 10, 2017 - Page 2 of 5 

There are two separate components to unclaimed property: claims and collections. Claims is the 
consumer protection portion, wherein the State returns lost, misplaced, or abandoned assets to the 
rightful owner or heirs. The second component is collections, which is the holder education and 
compliance component relating to the collection and documentation of owner assets and their 
transfer to the Department. 

Each year any entity conducting business in North Dakota is required by statute to review its 
accounting records to ensure it is not holding assets that remain unclaimed. If the business is 
holding such property, it is required to attempt to locate the rightful owner and if unsuccessful, 
transfer the asset to the Department with the owner detail report to be held in perpetuity for the 
owner or heirs to claim. The Division advertises and posts the information to public outreach 
websites. 

CLAIMS/OUTREACH 
The primary goal of any Unclaimed Property program is to reunite owners with lost or 
misplaced/abandoned property. In part with the help of additional staff, recently the Division has 
processed an increased number of claims and the value of property returned to owners has 
increased. During FY 2010 there were 2,890 claims paid totaling $1 .5 million , which grew in FY 
2016 to 5,306 paid claims totaling $4.2 Million. These are 46% and 64% increases respectively. 
These numbers only include the claims that were paid and do not represent the claims that were 
received and processed but not paid because ownership could not be verified . 

Unclaimed Property - Claims Paid 
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To supplement the statutorily required newspaper advertisements, the Unclaimed Property Division 
continues to implement additional outreach efforts. For the past two years the Department has 
purchased address updates and done direct mailings to all owners with reported social security 
numbers. In 2015, 5,295 letters were sent and in 2016, 4,416 letters were sent to owners of 
property informing them that the State held assets for them and explaining claim options. 
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The Unclaimed Property Division website is the primary advertising and outreach tool 
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{ https://land.nd.gov/UnclaimedProperty/ } . The website allows owners to search by name or city 
and to initiate a claim if property may be held for them. A process improvement that the 
Department has recently implemented tracks if an owner prints a claim form from the website. If 
the Division does not receive a claim within 30 days, the owner receives follow-up correspondence. 

The State also cooperates with 40 participating State Unclaimed Property programs in a joint 
comprehensive database which is searchable at: www.missingmoney.com , which permits 
concurrent searches of multiple states' records. 

COLLECTIONS and COMPLIANCE 
The Division cannot accomplish its goal of returning property to owners and heirs unless the holder 
community is educated and in compliance with the laws. These laws require holders to remit the 
owners' property to the State after it is deemed abandoned. In other words, we need to receive the 
property from the holder and place it in trust before it can be returned. 

There has been an increase in the number of reports received and dollars collected from holders. 
During FY 2010 the Division collected approximately $3.2 million compared to $10.4 million in FY 
2016. Increases can be attributed to expanded education and compliance efforts and to a 
significant increase in reporting of unclaimed oil and gas royalties . 
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To help increase holder compliance, North Dakota cooperates with other state unclaimed property 
offices to engage contract auditors to conduct reviews of holders for multiple states at the same 
time. In 2013, the Legislature approved the use of third party auditors for in-state audits as well. 
Prior to this change in legislation, third party auditors could only be utilized for out-of-state audits. 

Combined with the efforts of the Division, six private firms are contracted to conduct compliance 
reviews of holders. These efforts result in funds being gathered for businesses and citizens that 
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would otherwise not have been reported. In accordance with unclaimed property statutes, contract 
auditors have recovered $1 .7 million in unclaimed property since July, 2015. 

During the fall of 2016, the Division mailed notice to over 40,000 holders to remind and reinforce 
the State reporting requirements. The notification prompted a marked increase in contacts, 
questions and filed reports. 

SECURITIES 
The Unclaimed Property Division also maintains a portfolio of unclaimed securities on behalf of 
rightful owners currently valued at approximately $1.5 million. These securities come to the Division 
in the form of shares and are not included in the financial totals, since the value fluctuates or is 
undetermined. 

Securities are reported in the name of the State of North Dakota Unclaimed Property Division and 
are maintained in a custodial account at Northern Trust. This a custodial investment bank that also 
holds the Board 's investment assets for the Common Schools Trust and other permanent funds. 
Because of this existing relationship, the custodial fees for managing unclaimed securities are 
considerably less than what is paid by other states. 

TANGIBLE PROPERTY 
The Act also provides for the reporting of tangible property from financial institutions, typically assets 
from abandoned safe deposit boxes. Much of the tangible property held by the Division likely holds 
little monetary value, but could have historic or sentimental worth for the owner. The Division has 
sufficient storage space to maintain this property and recently purchased fireproof and waterproof 
safes to further safeguard the contents of these boxes of monetary value. 

OPERATIONS 
As you are likely aware, in 2015 the Office of the State Auditor completed a performance audit of the 
Unclaimed Property Division. This audit resulted in 19 formal findings. Since that time, countless 
hours have been spent improving processes, writing policies/procedures and implementing many 
positive changes. I can provide specifics of the activities and improvements related to each of these 
findings if the Committee wishes, but a summarized status is depicted in the following graph. 

Unclaimed Property Audit Tracking 

Addressed/Ongoing Ml Complete Iii In Progress 
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In 2016, the Department hired a consulting firm to prepare specific process improvement 
recommendations. The contractor, Major Oak suggested that an integrated IT system is needed to 
further enhance controls, increase efficiencies, and boost productivity. The Division's current system 
was developed in the 1990s. A new web based system would provide holders and owners with the 
ability to submit holder reports and claims on-line. The cost of an integrated IT system was included 
in the Department's appropriations request, and was included in Senate Bill 2013 as recently passed 
by the Senate. 

I would like to thank the committee for taking the time to learn about the North Dakota Unclaimed 
Property Division. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have . 
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Lance D. Gaebe, Commissioner 

Chairman Burckhard and members of the Senate Political Subdivisions Committee I am Gerard 
Schwan, Director of Grants/Claims, and I work for the Department of Trust Lands. 

I am here to testify in opposition of HB 1384 which relates to the duties of the administrator of 
abandoned property and the Unclaimed Property Division and the relocation and transfer of the 
Division to the Office of the State Treasurer. The Unclaimed Property Division works well within 
the Department since its inception in 1975. I will point out several cost factors related to 
relocating the authority and responsibilities of the Division that need adequate consideration. 

Along with my coworkers in the Department, we serve as the state agency under the direction 
and authority of the Land Board which is comprised of the Governor, Secretary of State, Attorney 
General, State Treasurer and Superintendent of Public Instruction. Lance Gaebe, Commissioner 
of Department of Trust Lands, is also the Secretary of the Land Board. 

The primary responsibility of the Board and the Department is to manage the Common Schools 
Trust Fund and 12 other permanent educational and institutional trust funds governed by Article 
IX of the North Dakota Constitution and statutes. An additional role within the Department is the 
management of the State Unclaimed Property Division . 

Recently, it has been highlighted that the North Dakota Unclaimed Property Division received a 
"D" rating from the Council of State Taxation (COST). While it is true that North Dakota received 
this rating, it is necessary to clarify what that rating means and provide some critical context. 

In 2013, the COST published a scorecard of unclaimed property laws across the United States. 
These scores are a ranking of the states' statutory framework and perceived fairness to holders. 
The rating is not representative of the performance of the Unclaimed Property program and 
operations, but of the enacted laws. The scoring criteria used by the COST included: 

I 
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• Whether business-to-business transactions are subject to escheat 
In North Dakota - Business-to-Business transactions ARE reportable. 

• Whether state unclaimed property statutes provide a period of limitations for 
lookback 
For North Dakota, the look back is current year, plus seven years. 

• Whether state unclaimed property statutes provide an independent administrative 
appeal process for holders 
NDCC 47-30.1-32 states that an appeal can be made to the Board of University and 
School Lands. 

• Whether the state prohibits contingent-fee auditors 
North Dakota contracts with contingent fee auditors. 

• Whether gift certificates/cards are subject to escheat 
Gift cards/certificates are exempt under North Dakota Unclaimed Property law. 

• Whether the state imposes excessive penalties 
North Dakota Unclaimed Property law allows for penalties for failed or late 
submittal of property but rarely assesses penalty. 

• Whether the state treats the payment of interest to property owners and the 
assessment of interest against holders equitably 
North Dakota has the ability to collect interest on overdue property but rarely 
assesses interest. Owners do not receive interest on property that is claimed. 

The North Dakota unclaimed property statutes generally support the owner of unclaimed 
property (the citizen) and are more restrictive upon on the holder of the property (the business) 
for noncompliance. The Council of State Taxation is a consortium of businesses that support laws 
on their behalf, not necessarily the property owners. North Dakota's laws scored a 'grade' D 
because they tend to focus on the owner, be that a customer, renter, client, employee or another 
business. 

In fiscal year 2015 the Division returned $2.9 million of the $7.5 million collected and in 2016 
these amounts increased to $4.25 million returned of the $10.48 million collected. These rates 
represent a 39% and 41% return rate, respectively, similar to national averages. According the 
National Association of Unclaimed Property Administrators, in FY 2015 all states combined 
returned 42% of what was collected. Based on the return rate statistics, the Department is 
operating the Unclaimed Property Division effectively. 

Please take into account that the amount of money returned is not the sole indicator of 
operational effectiveness. The number of claims processed and paid as the most important 
indicators of successful outreach to owners. In her presentation of background statistics, Susan 
Dollinger, Unclaimed Property Administrator, reports that claims processing has increased 60% 
since 2014, largely due to increased public outreach efforts, education, and adding one additional 
staff as authorized by the legislature. There has also been an increase in claims for abandoned 
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oil and gas royalties, as well as insurance money that was received as a result of life insurance 
company audits. 

The Unclaimed Property Act requires some specific outreach activities, including the publication 
of a list of owners and publishing the list in every county's official newspaper. However, we 
provide additional outreach through our website search capabilities, as well as providing posters 
for display in all U.S. Post Offices in North Dakota, participating in third party search engines, 
addressing trade and fraternal organizations, contacting employment groups through e-mail, and 
purchasing address updates for direct mailings. These activities have helped double the number 
of claims paid between FY2015 and FY2016. Providing our additional outreach efforts is showing 
success. 

FUNDING 

Funds received in the name of an individual or business will always belong to that owner or their 
heirs. The State holds, but does not take ownership of the assets so the rightful owner/heir can 
always claim their property. 

There are zero general funds appropriated for unclaimed property functions. All operational 
costs are paid by Unclaimed Property proceeds. In addition to the amounts authorized biennially 
for salary and operations, N.D.C.C. Ch. 47-30.1 includes continuing appropriation authority for 
program costs including: outreach efforts, service charges, audit costs, payment of claims, and 
holder reimbursements. 

The Department's cost of operations, including operations of the Division, are prorated based upon 
assets and FTEs working in this functional area. When abandoned funds are received by the Division, 
an operational amount is used to pay claims and unclaimed property operational expenses. The 
remainder is maintained in custody within the Common Schools Trust Fund. Any earnings on 
unclaimed property is credited to the Common Schools Trust Fund for the benefit of education. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There are a combined 3.3 FTEs in the Department who collectively share responsibilities for the 
Unclaimed Property Division's separate tasks. These multiple duties are shared, in part, by 13 
individuals: 

• 2 dedicated to Reports, Claims, Compliance, and Administration 

• .5 FTE for Administrative oversight 
• .5 FTE for Accounting, Revenue Compliance, and Front Office Support 
• .3 FTE for Information Technology services 

This level of separation of duties helps to ensure compliance with accounting control guidelines 
in the entry of personal information and handling of financial data. For your review I have added 
a chart depicting the various roles fulfilled by different personnel in the lifecycle of holder 
reporting and claims by our citizens: 
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The fiscal note for House Bill 1384 identifies little or no financial impact by moving the operations 
of Unclaimed Property out of the Department of Trust Lands. This review may be incomplete. 

Property owners, amounts and holder records are integrated and maintained within the Agency's 
database. If the unclaimed property responsibilities are moved, there will be costs associated 
with moving the information technology systems, which was internally designed in the 1990s. 

Because of the age of the system, a new web-based system will be absolutely necessary 
regardless of where unclaimed property is administered. A new web based IT system estimated 
to cost approximately $500,000 has been included in the Department's budget appropriation 
request. 

The fiscal note also does not consider the time and compensation to train another agency's staff 
regarding the nuances and procedures associated with unclaimed property. 

The transfer of existing contracts is another task and cost that needs additional consideration . 
Currently there are more than 35 mutual fund companies that maintain accounts on behalf of 
citizens of North Dakota. A new corporate resolution would need to be created and filed for each 
and every one. Also, Northern Trust maintains about $1 Million in securities for the Division . 

• Audit contracts with six firms would need to be assigned or rewritten. 
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Accounting, transaction records, security, physical records and property would all need to be 
transferred. The Department of Trust Lands' investments/securities and accounting staff would 
also need to work closely both before and after the proposed transfer a duties, particularly 
regarding the transfers of funds and investments/security transactions needed for operations or 
those maintained within the Common Schools Trust Fund. Presently, all of this coordination 
happens internally within the Department. 

The Department hosts 300 square feet of office space and on-site storage and maintains an off
site storage contract for an estimated 300 "boxes" of historical records. The Department recently 
purchased and installed five fire and water proof file cabinets to help safeguard items. In addition 
to these 600-pound cabinets, records and tangible property are stored in ten additional file 
cabinets in a secure room that only specific employees can access under dual control. 

There are also many logistical considerations involved with moving the Unclaimed Property 
Division: 

• Assignment or rebidding of audit contracts 
• Redefine custodial accounts/relationships 
• Transfer and validation of data compiled since 1975 
• Transfer of thousands of paper files 
• Transfer of claim scanning and claim approval applications 
• Reregistration of securities 
• Holder transition 
• Moving the Unclaimed Property Website 
• Transferring accounts ofthe Missing Money website 
• Transferring the Child Support data sharing with DHS 

We recognize that there are 32 other states that have Unclaimed Property within their State 
Treasurer's Office. Of those we are one of the two states providing Special Funds toward 
education. This factor, coupled with the unconsidered costs, is why we believe the best place for 
the operation of the Unclaimed Property division is with the Department and Land Board, given 
the statutory and constitutional mandate to manage the Common Schools Trust Fund. lfthis bill 
passes, it will have a negative impact on this and other funds dedicated to educational purposes. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, we ask that you carefully consider the advantages 
of leaving the State's Unclaimed Property responsibilities within the Department of Trust Lands, 
and recognize the cost and unneeded burden of moving it to another agency. This bill is in effect, 
a solution in search of a problem, thus on behalf of the Commissioner, I hope that you will give 
the bill a Do Not Pass recommendation. 

If the Legislature wishes to continue considering the relocation of Unclaimed Property and its 
responsibilities, we hope that you will evaluate all of the costs and complications of doing so. 

Thank you for your time and attention, I would stand for any questions . 
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Chairman Burckhard, members of the committee, I am State Treasurer Kelly Schmidt. I am here today to 

provide a perspective on HB 1384 which may give a best practices solution to the suggestion of moving a 

"division" of a state agency to another state agency. 

In the big picture of the Unclaimed Property discussion, I believe unclaimed property has a natural fit 

inside the Office of the State Treasurer as 39 State Treasurers carry this responsibility in their offices. 

As State Treasurer and a board member of the University and School Lands Board, I bring a viewpoint of 

best practices to this discussion. 

As the House of Representatives voted to place Unclaimed Property within the Treasurer's Office, it was 

my intent throughout that process to remain somewhat quiet, but remained in a position of fact finding 

so we as an agency could make a solid decision on this issue based on facts and not emotion, looking at 

what is truly best for the people, who are ultimately, the rightful owners of Unclaimed Property . 

The Unclaimed Property Division of the North Dakota Land Department has 19 formal audit findings 

from their current audit. By agreeing to transfer Unclaimed Property to the Office of the State Treasurer 

do you as a legislative body set precedent, on the transfer of a division of a state agency, with a host of 

negative audit findings, to another agency, with no formal audit findings? Is it really the responsibility of 

one agency to so call "clean up" the errors of another state agency? 

By transferring Unclaimed Property to the Office of the State Treasurer in its current form, my office will 

be required to mend and repair these audit issues. There is no assurance this could be done in time 

prior the next audit. This would leave our agency in a precarious situation. As you very well know, it 

takes time, talent and resources and often legislative policy and fiscal policy to remedy audit findings. 

As a Land Board member, it is my recommendation this committee support to retain Unclaimed 

Property within the Land Department. This will allow the agency head and his team, who lived through 

the audit, and have the actual working knowledge on what needs to be addressed to work through the 

findings to remedy and implement the appropriate policies. In essence, it is their audit to clean up and 

this burden should not be transferred to another agency to repair. 

A transfer of Unclaimed Property to the Office of the State Treasurer is not the right fit today and the 

only people who would suffer would be the actual owners of the unclaimed property as delays could 

occur in returning rightful property to its owner. 

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, this is not the biennium to transfer Unclaimed Property to 
another agency. Perhaps in the future . 

I 



As a member of the Land Board, it would be my pleasure to provide some insight I have gained from 

other State Treasurers on software and processes used to make unclaimed property more efficient and 

more user friendly for the people of North Dakota. 

Chairman, members of the committee, thank you for your consideration. I stand for questions. 
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